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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Carnegie Free Public Library building, erected in 1905, is a Neo-
Classical design comprising a main floor, level, and a high basement. As
increased use of the building caused crowded conditions, a mezzanine floor
area was erected at the northwest quarter of the first floor.

The exterior walls are of brick with a horizontal rebated joint at
each seventh course. The cornice section is a continuous 1ine of alter-
nate indentations (dentils) forming the cornice.

About the exterior wall of the building there is a cut stone belt course
at the level of the floor line.

The windows are double hung with a rounded top sash with the glass
in the top sash divided and set with leaded joints. At the head of the
windows there are four courses of formal brick curved as are the window tops.
There is a continuous stone belt course about the building at the level of
the window sill.

The outside building dimensions are approximately 55 x 59'. The div-
ision-of areas at the interior of the building are separated by wood colon-
nade ornamental columns topped by a wood cornice. Except for minor necessary
maintenance, the building retains <its original appearance, with the exception
of the original entry doors. There are also a few broken windows which can
easi]ybﬁorrected. At the center of the main floor level there is a hexagonal
glass skylight, raised above the ceiling level, which admits natural Tight
to the interior of the building.

The floor and roof systems are of wood joists carried on steel beams and
columns and appear to be in sound condition.

The first floor level is about 6'6" above the sidewalk level At the en-
trance there is a covered portico which has an ornamental cornice and is sup-
ported on round stone columns. The columns have a scrolled ornamental stone
cap and a base plinth.

The present 1ighting is by fluorescent fixtures; the heating is steam
radiation furnished from the city central steam systems.

Some improvements were made, including the replacement of old wooden front
steps with more secure cement, covering the wooden floors with inlaid linoleum,
and separation of the children's department from the adult. Children's depart-
ment was established in the basement of the building, and there was continued
physical improvement by an overall redecoration project, and an enlargement of
the Children's department.

A souvenir in the historic files is a picture postcard view of a trim, new
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building of Neo-Classical styling. Elm trees growdong one side and a residence
nestles close to the other. Dirt streets of a young town cross in front of it.

Except for the trees, the house and unpaved roads, the picture could have been
taken yesterday.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Carnegie Public Library in Watertown, South Dakota, made a sig-
nificant contribution to the general cultural enlightenment of the pecple
of the area. Its collections included 1literature, local and national his-
tory as well as periodicals and newspapers. Of special importance to the
Watertown area, which is a major farming region, was the Tibrary's role in
the dissemination of information relating to crops, husbandry and general
agricultural problems. Local support and interest in the structure re-
mained high until 1967, when a new Tibrary was constructed to keep up with
the increased pressire for a larger facility.

The exterior of the Carnegie Library has retained most of its original
appearance. No additions or alterations blemish the local adaptation of a
Neo-Classical design. Its Ionic columns and brick work still convey the
impression originally intended.

Local interest in a library led to a public meeting on April 22, 1899,
which established a Public Library Association, incorporated under state
law. Initially the library was housed in the City Hall, but in 1903 City
Alderman C.H. Tuck moved that a petition be made to the Carnegie Corpor-
ation for a permanent library building. The City obtained the corner lot
at Maple Street and First Avenue Southeast for $1300, and the Carnegie
grant of $10,000 soon followed. L.E. Brickell received the contract to
construct the $12,272 building. -He—completed the project in 1906 and the
city moved the books to the new building. A budget of $2500 was issued
for maintenance and upkeep.

The library served Watertown and surrounding areas until 1967 when the
new Tibrary was completed. At present the Kampeska Heritage Museum occupies
the old library. Its exhibits include a variety of bird spec¢imens, Indian
artifacts, historic documents, and other items relating to Watertown's past.
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AMENDMENT TO NOMINATION: CHANGE OF ADDRESS.

1. Carnegie Free Public Library (Kampeska Heritage Museum).
NRIS Reference No. 760017+5.)4

2. Recent NRIS print-outs indicated a need to clarify the
address/location of this property. Apparently, the address was
incorrectly recorded at the time of entry. The proper address for this
property is:

27 First Avenue, SE
Watertown

First Congr., District
Codington County Code: 029
South Dakota Code: 046

All other items of the original nomination should remain unchanged.
11. FORM PREPARED BY:

John E. Rau, National Register Coordinator

South Dakota State Historical Preservation Center
P. 0. Box 417, Vermillion, SD, 57069

phone: 605-677-5314,

June 30, 1987.
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procedures set forth by the National Park Service.
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